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169 Wentworth Street is a distinguished early example of Greek Revival residential architecture in
Charleston’s Harleston Village, built on land that once formed part of the extensive Harleston Green

holdings. The property was originally owned by Robert Dewar Simons, who held several parcels in the
area and subdivided this lot from the broader Harleston property. On June 22, 1831, Simons conveyed
the parcel, which measured 120 feet along Rutledge Avenue and extended approximately 212 feet along

Wentworth Street, to Elizabeth Corbett for $1, a transaction that appears to have been a conveyance
within the family. Simons was married to a member of the Corbett family, linking the ownership directly

to the Harleston lineage.

A refined Greek Revival residence with deep Harleston roots, 169
Wentworth reflects Charleston’s early growth through

architecture, family ties, and original Charleston history. Evolving
over time into an iconic modern Harleston Village home.

Although the 1831 deed made no mention of structures or
“improvements,” a residence was standing on the site by 1840, when
Elizabeth Corbett sold part of the property for $1 to her nephew, Dr.
John Beaufain Irving. The deed described the parcel as “the Lot and

Land on Harleston Green on which his residence stands,” confirming that
the dwelling was already in place. Because Dr. Irving was listed as

residing in the home as early as 1837, it is likely the house was
constructed around that time. Corbett does not appear in city directories
as living at this address, suggesting she may have built the home as an
investment or rental property rather than for her own use. Dr. Irving’s

brief recorded ownership (followed by a quick resale) has long contributed
to confusion in the home’s early documentation. John Beaufain Irving



Originally from Jamaica, Dr. Irving studied medicine in Philadelphia before settling in
Charleston. In addition to his medical career, he served as Sheriff of the Charleston County

District and was secretary of the South Carolina Jockey Club for thirty years. He was also the
author of A Day on the Cooper River and History of the Turf in South Carolina.

Architecturally, the house reflects the confident restraint of Charleston’s Greek Revival period. It
is a two-story frame residence set on a high brick basement, clad in broad, leveled weatherboard
siding. An unusual reeded cushion belt course divides the basement from the upper floors, while

the cornice, along with the two-tier rear piazzas, is enriched with medallions. The porches feature
Tuscan columns, and it is believed the front entrance was originally taller and more elaborate,

possibly extending two stories. Inside, the detailing remains modest but refined, including simple
plaster cornices, circular ceiling medallions, and restrained wood trim. The floor plan differs from

the typical central-hall arrangement, with smaller rooms and a stair hall to the north and two
larger adjoining rooms to the south. Later changes include cast-iron mantels likely added after

the Civil War and a staircase installed in 1912, replacing an earlier spiral stair.

With ten owners since Dr. John Beaufain Irving and a remarkably intact Greek Revival design,
169 Wentworth Street offers a vivid reflection of Harleston Village’s early growth and

Charleston’s lasting architectural tradition.
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